
STATE OF ILLINOIS 

CONTRACT 

Central Management Services 

JPMC Rock Salt Bulk, FY21 

21-416CMS-BOSS4-P-20911

The Parties to this contract are the State of Illinois acting through the undersigned Agency (collectively the State) 

and the Vendor. This contract, consisting of the signature page and numbered sections listed below and any 

attachments referenced in this contract, constitute the entire contract between the Parties concerning the subject 

matter of the contract, and in signing the contract, the Vendor affirms that the Certifications and Financial 

Disclosures and Conflicts of Interest attached hereto are true and accurate as of the date of the Vendor's execution 

of the contract. This contract supersedes all prior proposals, contracts and understandings between the Parties 

concerning the subject matter of the contract. This contract can be signed in multiple counterparts upon 

agreement of the Parties. 

Contract includes Bid Buy Purchase Order? (The Agency answers this question prior to contract filing.) 

□ Yes

IX] No

Contract uses Illinois Procurement Gateway Certifications and Disclosures? 

□ Yes (IPG Certifications and Disclosures including FORMS B)

IX] No

1. DESCRIPTION OF SUPPLIES AND SERVICES

2. PRICING

3. TERM AND TERMINATION

4. STANDARD BUSINESS TERMS AND CONDITIONS

5. STATE SUPPLEMENTAL PROVISIONS

6. STANDARD CERTIFICATIONS

7. FINANCIAL DISCLOSURES AND CONFLICTS OF INTEREST

8. CONTRACT SPECIFIC CERTIFICATIONS AND DISCLOSURES - "FORMS B" (IF APPLICABLE)

9. PURCHASE ORDER FROM BIDBUY (IF APPLICABLE)

In consideration of the mutual covenants and agreements contained in this contract, and for other good and 

valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, the Parties agree to the 

terms and conditions set forth herein and have caused this contract to be executed by their duly authorized 

representatives on the dates shown on the following CONTRACT SIGNATURES page 

State of Illinois IFB 

Contract: Title Page 
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AGENCY USE ONLY NOT PART OF CONTRACTUAL PROVISIONS 

• Agency Reference#: 21-416CMS-BOSS4-R-56420

• Project Title: JPMC Rock Salt Bulk

• Contract#: 21-416CMS-BOSS4-P-2O911

• Procurement Method (IFB, RFP, Small Purchase, etc.): IFB

• BidBuy Reference#: 21-416CMS-BOSS4-B-16193

• BidBuy Publication Date: 7/23/20

• Award Code: A

• Subcontractor Utilization? D Yes 0No Subcontractor Disclosure? D Yes 0No 

• Funding Source:

• Obligation #:

• Small Business Set-Aside? D Yes 0No

• Minority Owned Business? D Yes 0No

• Women Owned Business? D Yes 0No

• Persons with Disabilities Owned Business? D Yes 0No

• Veteran Owned Small Business? D Yes 0No

• Other Preferences?

State of Illinois IFB 

Contract: State Use Only 
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1.2.4.4 Seasonal Orders: Non-State agencies and qualified not-for-profit 

agencies reserve the right to purchase up to 50% of the estimated order 

requirements prior to November 30th of the current year. Vendor shall 

notify each delivery point of when shipment is to begin. 

1.2.4.5 Order Timeline: For an order placed prior to 9:00 a.m. on a given day, 

that day would be considered as the first calendar day of the seven (7) 

day delivery period. For an order placed after 9:00 a.m. on a given day, 

the day following would be considered as the first calendar day of the 

seven (7) day delivery period, or as amended by order guidelines in 

Section 1.3.2.9. 

1.2.4.6 Order Guidelines: An agency may order up to 20% of their 100% 

contracted tonnage in any given week and Vendor shall deliver within 7 

working days after receipt of order. Quantities ordered above the 20 

percent threshold shall have an extended delivery time of one-working­

day for each one percentage-point above the 20% guideline. For 

example, if an agency orders 25% of their awarded total 100 tons, 

delivery of the first 20 tons (20%) shall be within 7 working days after 

receipt of order and the remaining 5 tons shall be delivered within 12 

working days after receipt of the order. 

1.2.4.7 Peak Season Orders: After hours and weekend delivery arrangements 

are encouraged during severe seasonal weather events to provide 

Vendor additional ability to maintain a prompt order delivery schedule. 

Orders placed during peak season should be in accordance with 

projected requirements and not in excess of the order guidelines, 

thereby hindering a Vendor's ability to maintain a prompt order delivery 

schedule. 

1.2.4.8 Post Season Orders: All orders for Rock Salt shall be placed by the end of 

May for the previous season's estimated usage. If the location does not 

have adequate capacity to hold the rock salt, the Vendor may elect to 

add a storage charge per ton/day. 

Storage Charge:$ .75 per ton per day

For procurements conducted in Bid Buy, the State may include in this contract the Bid Buy 

Purchase Order as it contains the agreed Supplies and/or Services. 

1.3. MILESTONES AND DELIVERABLES: 

1.3.1. The Vendor will be required to report to Central Management Services- Bureau 

of Strategic Sourcing (BOSS) an annual usage report. This report shall be in a tab 
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Contract: Description of Supplies and Services 

V.20.1









Delivery Failure Damages: If after seven (7) days assessment of Liquidated 

Damage claims, a Vendor has still failed to deliver as required, the State 

reserves the right to immediately, and without notice to Vendor, take action to 

remedy Vendor failure. This may include the termination of the order and 

purchase of salt from other sources, or other action to ensure ice control 

availability for public safety purposes. Note that any or all additional costs may 

be collected from the original Vendor, in addition to the applied Liquidated 

Damages. 

1.6. SUBCONTRACTING 

State of Illinois IFB 

Subcontractors are allowed. 

1.6.1. Will subcontractors be utilized? IZ! Yes D No 

A subcontractor is a person or entity that enters into a contractual agreement 

with a total value of $50,000 or more with a person or entity who has a contract 

subject to the Illinois Procurement Code pursuant to which the person or entity 

provides some or all of the goods, services, real property, remuneration, or other 

monetary forms of consideration that are the subject of the primary State 

contract, including subleases from a lessee of a State contract. 

All contracts with subcontractors must include Standard Certifications completed 

and signed by the subcontractor. 

1.6.2. Please identify below subcontracts with an annual value of $50,000 or more that 

will be utilized in the performance of the contract, the names and addresses of 

the subcontractors, and a description of the work to be performed by each. 

• Subcontractor Name: ****Please See Attached Listings**** 

Amount to Be Paid: 

Address: 

Description of Work: 

• Subcontractor Name: 

Amount to Be Paid: 

Address: 

Description of Work: 
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Contract: Description of Supplies and Services 
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State of Illinois IFB 

Vendor shall disclose the locations where the services required shall be performed and 

the known or anticipated value of the services to be performed at each location. If the 

Vendor received additional consideration in the evaluation based on work being 

performed in the United States, it shall be a breach of contract if the Vendor shifts any 

such work outside the United States. 

• Location where services will be performed: ****Please See Attached Listings**** 

Value of services performed at this location: 

• Location where services will be performed: 

Value of services performed at this location: 
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Contract: Description of Supplies and Services 
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2. PRICING

2.1 FORMAT OF PRICING: 

2.1.1 Vendor shall submit pricing in the format shown below, based on the terms and 

conditions set forth in section 1 of this Contract. 

2.1.2 Pricing shall be submitted in the following format: Price shall be Unit Cost in 

accordance with the Unit of Measure (UOM) stated in BidBuy . 

2.2 

2.3 

2.4 

2.5 

State of Illinois IFB 
Contract: Pricing 

V.20.1

TYPE OF PRICING: The Illinois Office of the Comptroller requires the State to indicate 

whether the contract price is firm or estimated at the time it is submitted for obligation. 

The total price of this contract is estimated. 

EXPENSES ALLOWED: Expenses are not allowed. 

DISCOUNT: The State may receive a O % discount for payment within O days of receipt of 

correct invoice. This discount will not be a factor in making the award. 

VENDOR'S PRICING: Attach additional pages if necessary or if the format of pricing 

specified above in Section 2.1 requires additional pages. 

2.5.1. Vendor's Price for the Initial Term: Estimated Price - $27,806,133.65

For procurements conducted in Bid Buy, the State may include in this contract the Bid Buy 

Purchase Order as it contains the agreed pricing. 

0 If checked, see the attached BidBuy Purchase Order for the Vendor's Price for the 

Initial Term. 

2.5.2. Renewal Compensation: If the contract is renewed, the price shall be at the same 

rate as for the initial term unless a different compensation or formula for 
determining the renewal compensation is stated in this section. 

2.5.3. Economic Adjustment Clause: 

The prices in this contract must remain firm for the first season after the 
execution date of the contract. Thereafter, requested adjustments will be 

limited to once at the renewal term. See section 3.2.4.4 for further details. 

All adjustment requests shall be made in writing. Vendor shall not be entitled to 
apply an upward price adjustment without first obtaining approval of such 

request from the Bureau of Strategic Sourcing (BOSS). 

In the event a downward adjustment is warranted, the State reserves the right 
to adjust once during the renewal term for this. It will be the responsibility of 
the Vendor to notify BOSS of any such decrease. 
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3. TERM AND TERMINATION

3.1 TERM OF THIS CONTRACT: This contract has an initial term that shall commence upon 

the last dated signature of the Parties and expire on 09/30/21 with the option to 

renew one 12 month period. 

For procurements conducted in BidBuy, the State may include in this contract the Bid Buy 

Purchase Order as it contains the agreed term. 

3.1.1 In no event will the total term of the contract, including the initial term, any 

renewal terms and any extensions, exceed ten (10) years. 30 ILCS 500/20-60 

3.1.2 Vendor shall not commence billable work in furtherance of the contract prior to 

final execution of the contract except when permitted pursuant to 30 ILCS 

500/20-80. 

3.2 RENEWAL: 

State of Illinois IFB 

3.2.1. Any renewal is subject to the same terms and conditions as the original contract 

unless otherwise provided in the pricing section. The State may renew this 

contract for any or all the option periods specified, may exercise any of the 

renewal options early, and may exercise more than one option at a time based 

on continuing need and favorable market conditions, when in the best interest of 

the State. The contract may neither renew automatically nor renew solely at the 

Vendor's option. 

3.2.2. Pricing for the renewal term(s), or the formula for determining price, is shown in 

the pricing section of this contract. 

3.2.3. The State reserves the right to renew for a total of 12 months. 

3.2.4. Participation in the contract renewal is based upon an annual survey and 

additional participation in the resultant contract is not allowed. 

3.2.4.1 Participant's quantities cannot increase by more than 20% of last 

season's minimum purchase commitment quantity of either 80 or 

100%. 

3.2.4.2 All purchase commitments for the participants will remain the 

same as the initial term. 

3.2.4.3 Participants do have the option to decrease their quantities. 
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